
 

       
In-Person and Via Live Stream 

Dial-In Live Stream: 312-626-6799; Webinar ID 848 1510 7041; Passcode 654587 or click here: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84815107041?pwd=L05aZmFENVVJeVFOUUZPT2gzMkE2dz09 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM THE AUGUST 28, 2023, MEETING OF THE COUNCIL 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM THE SEPTEMBER 5, 2023, REGULAR MEETING OF THE COUNCIL 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM THE SEPTEMBER 5, 2023, CLOSED MEETING OF THE COUNCIL 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: - emailed public comment can be sent to the village clerk at vmoritz@forestpark.net prior 

to 6:30 p.m. the day of the meeting 
COMMUNICATIONS:   

 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS:  
 
BILLS BY RESOLUTION 
  
UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  
 
NEW BUSINESS:  
 

1. Resolution approving Pay Request #2 (Final) for the 15th Street Sewer Separation Project 

2. Resolution approving Pay Request #6 for the 2023 Water Main Project 

3. Resolution proposing a Redevelopment Plan and Project for the Designation of The Circle Harlem Tax 

Increment Financing Redevelopment Project and the Adoption of Tax Increment Allocation Financing  

4. Resolution approving Change Order No. 1 to Contract with Chicagoland Paving for the Access Road 

Rehabilitation Project of the North Water Tower Paving Project  

5. Resolution to Enter into a Dialogue to Explore Establishing a Cooperation Agreement between Vlora 

Municipality, Albania and the Village of Forest Park 

ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
COMMISSIONER REPORTS   

ADDITIONAL NEW BUSINESS:   
6. Recess into closed session pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(11) to consider litigation 

7. Motion to Reconvene Open Session Meeting 

8. Resolution approving the execution of a Release and Settlement Agreement 

 
ADJOURNMENT   

 
VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK 

 COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, September 11, 2023   

Lower Level of Village Hall 
7:00 PM 



THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COUNCIL OF THE 
VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

HELD ON MONDAY EVENING, AUGUST 28, 2023 

Mayor Hoskins led all assembled in the Pledge of Allegiance at 7:00 p.m. 

ROLL CALL 

Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins answered the Roll Call. 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 

It was moved by Commissioner Nero and seconded by Commissioner Maxham that the minutes from 
the August 14, 2023, Regular Meeting of the Council be approved without reading as each member 
has received a copy thereof and found same to be correct.   

ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Mr. Steven Backman commented about the minutes from August 14, 2023, stating that the 
discussion about the approval of bills was educational and a roadmap of how things can be 
discussed and possibly objected to and questioned whether there could be more notes about the 
discussion in the minutes. 

COMMUNICATIONS: 

None 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS: 

None 



 2 

APPROVAL OF BILLS: 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Nero that the Resolution for the payment of bills 
be adopted.  The bills totaled $541,498.46. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, 

Voogd and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
 
None 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Nero that the Resolution authorizing the 
execution of an Employment Separation and Release 
Agreement be adopted.  
 
It was moved by Commissioner Voogd and seconded by 
Commissioner Melin-Rogovin to recess into closed session 
pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(1) to discuss the appointment, 
employment, compensation, discipline, performance, or 
dismissal of specific employees.  
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioner Voogd 
NAYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin 

and Mayor Hoskins 
ABSENT: None 
The motion failed. 
 
The clerk was instructed to take the roll call on the main 
motion. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, 

and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSTAIN: Commissioner Voogd 
The motion carried. 
 
 
 

 
 

R-71-23 
APPROVAL OF BILLS IN 

THE AMOUNT OF 
$541,498.46 
APPROVED 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

R-72-23 
RESOLUTION 

AUTHORIZING EXECUTION 
OF EMPLOYMENT 
SEPARATION AND 

RELEASE AGREEMENT 
APPROVED 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 3 

It was moved by Commissioner Voogd and seconded by 
Commissioner Melin-Rogovin that the Resolution approving 
the specifications and authorizing the advertising of bids for 
the Village of Forest Park 2023 Village Hall and Community 
Center Parking Lot Improvements Project be adopted. It was 
discussed that the current estimate for this project is $201,000, 
while the budgeted funds were $155,000.  The VIP fund 
contingency has $225,000, so we will have to be careful about 
spending.  It was further discussed that the village has already 
expended funds for the engineering portion of the project and 
added that we will continue to seek grant funding and green 
initiatives, whenever possible. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, 

Voogd and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Melin-Rogovin and seconded 
by Commissioner Voogd that the Resolution approving the 
specifications and authorizing the advertising of bids for the 
Village of Forest Park 2023 Sidewalk Improvement Project be 
adopted. It was discussed that although this is a necessary 
safety initiative, the current estimate is $90,000, while the 
budgeted funds were $60,000.  Depending on the bidding, any 
overage on the project will have to come out of the VIP 
contingency as well. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, 

Voogd and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Voogd and seconded by 
Commissioner Melin-Rogovin that the Resolution authorizing 
and approving the purchase of a 2024 Ford F-250 extended 
cab 4X4 Pick-up Truck with “V” Plow and Emergency Lighting 
be adopted. It was discussed that this high-priority vehicle will 
not be delivered until 2024, and should be paid for out of the 
Fleet Fund.   There was further discussion that the fleet fund is 
being depleted and with the decreasing revenue from the gas 
tax, it will take about 9 months to fund the purchase of this 
vehicle.  
 

R-73-23 
RESOLUTION APPROVING 

SPECIFICATIONS AND 
BIDDING OF VILLAGE 

HALL AND COMMUNITY 
CENTER PARKING LOT 

IMPROVEMENTS 
APPROVED 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

R-74-23 
RESOLUTION APPROVING 

SPECIFICATIONS AND 
BIDDING OF 2023 

SIDEWALK 
IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

APPROVED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

R-75-23 
RESOLUTION 

AUTHORIZING PURCHASE 
OF PUBLIC WORKS 

PICKUP PLOW TRUCK 
APPROVED 

 
 
 
 
 



 4 

ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, 

Voogd and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Voogd and seconded by 
Commissioner Melin-Rogovin that the Ordinance waiving bid 
and authorizing the acceptance of a proposal for Village 
Parkway Tree Pruning by and between Davis Tree Care and 
the Village of Forest Park be adopted. It was discussed that 
this action will help the village maintain its “Tree City USA” 
status as well as get the village caught up on necessary 
maintenance on our urban forest management plan. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, 

Voogd and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Nero and seconded by 
Commissioner Maxham that the Ordinance amending the 
Village of Forest Park Zoning Code Map to allow the rezoning 
of a property from B-1, Neighborhood Shopping District to I-1, 
Light Industrial District in the Village of Forest Park, Cook 
County, Illinois re: PZC 2023-02: 723 Des Plaines Avenue, be 
adopted. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, 

Voogd and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Nero and seconded by 
Commissioner Maxham that the Ordinance granting a 
conditional use permit for the replacement of an existing 
billboard with an electronic billboard in the I-1 District in the 
Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois re: PZC 2023-03: 
723 Des Plaines Avenue, be adopted.  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

O-38-23 
ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING 

TREE PRUNING 
PROPOSAL FROM DAVIS 

TREE CARE 
APPROVED 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

O-39-23 
ORDINANCE AMENDING 

ZONING MAP FOR 723 DES 
PLAINES REZONING FROM 

B-1 TO I-1 
APPROVED 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

O-40-23 
ORDINANCE GRANTING 
CONDITIONAL USE FOR 

REPLACEMENT OF 
BILLBOARD IN I-1 ZONING 

DISTRICT 
APPROVED 

 
 



 5 

ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, 

Voogd and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Melin-Rogovin and seconded 
by Commissioner Voogd to approve the request from the Girl 
Scouts of Greater Chicago and Northwest Indiana to conduct 
their Fall Product sales from December 2023 through May, 
2024.  
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, 

Voogd and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

GIRL SCOUTS 
FUNDRAISING REQUEST 
APPROVED BY MOTION 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT: 
 
None 
 
 
COMMISSIONER’S REPORTS: 
 
Commissioner Maxham passed along the sentiments of a village resident who wanted to recognize 
John Cunningham and Rob Sall, who have planted the areas along Beloit and Thomas and Harvard 
streets.  These two gentlemen have spent countless hours and their own funds to beautify and 
maintain these plantings.  The resident encouraged the village to present these men with a 
beautification award.  The commissioner further expounded on her comments about the village’s 
budget, reminding the elected officials to stay focused and consider whether the village needs to cut 
some of the “luxury” services provided or find another path forward to increase revenue. 
 
Commissioner Melin-Rogovin reported that she met with Cook County Assessor, Fritz Kaegi 
regarding the upcoming Forest Park reassessments and his commitment to work with Forest Park to 
hold a workshop for residents to find out about the appeal process.  The commissioner further 
reported that the Safety and Traffic Commission is planning to hold a public information event for 
residents to understand the duties and process the commission follows.  The next meeting is 
September 21st.   
 
Commissioner Voogd reported that the Garage Galleries event was a success and a really fun event.  
Also, the commissioner expressed her gratitude to staff , who work with the community on a daily 
basis. 
 
 



 6 

Mayor Hoskins reported that District 91 dedicated their new STEAM laboratory and commended them 
for their investments in the middle school and Field Stevenson, which will pay off for the students in 
the district.  The mayor further reported that the Hawk car dealership is planning to move forward with 
their plans for the Des Plaines and Roosevelt location.  Last, the mayor met with Representative La 
Shawn Ford regarding the issue of funerals that pass through Forest Park and are out of compliance.  
It is a concern for the village and the legislator will work with the village on methods to lessen the 
disturbances.  
 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business to be addressed, Commissioner Nero moved and Commissioner 
Maxham seconded to adjourn the meeting.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
Mayor Hoskins declared the meeting adjourned at 7:35 P.M. 

 
Respectfully submitted,  

 
 
 

Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 



THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE COUNCIL OF THE 
VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

HELD ON TUESDAY MORNING, SEPTEMBER 5, 2023 
 
 

Mayor Hoskins led all assembled in the Pledge of Allegiance at 11:00 a.m.  
 
 

ROLL CALL 
 
Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins answered the Roll Call. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Mr. Steven Backman commented that he did not believe the notice for this meeting was posted in a 
timely manner, according to the Open Meetings Act of Illinois, adding that he checked at 9:45 p.m. 
on Sunday on the village’s website and was unable to locate the notice at that time. 
 
 
Dr. Tanya Friese submitted public comment via email in support of appointing Rachell Entler as 
Interim Village Administrator. 
 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Nero and seconded by 
Commissioner Maxham to recess into closed session pursuant 
to 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(1) to consider the employment, 
appointment, compensation, discipline or termination of 
specific employees of the public body 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, 

Voogd and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Nero and seconded by 
Commissioner Maxham to reconvene into open session. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, 

Voogd and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

RECESS INTO CLOSED 
SESSION AT 11:11 A.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RECONVENE OPEN 
SESSION AT 12:19 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 2 

It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Nero that the Resolution appointing Rachell 
Entler as Interim Village Administrator and approving and 
authorizing the execution of an Interim Village Administrator 
Employment Agreement for the Village of Forest Park be 
adopted. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, 

Voogd and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
Mayor Hoskins administered the oath of office to newly 
appointed Interim Village Administrator, Rachell Entler. 
 
Administrator Entler expressed her gratitude to the Village 
Council, her colleagues and especially her family for their 
support and stated she is looking forward to getting to work. 

R-76-23 
RACHELL ENTLER 

APPOINTED INTERIM 
VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR 

APPROVED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

OATH OF OFFICE 
ADMINISTERED 

 
 
 

 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business to be addressed, Commissioner Nero moved and Commissioner 
Maxham seconded to adjourn the meeting.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
Mayor Hoskins declared the meeting adjourned at 12:23 P.M. 

 
Respectfully submitted,  

 
 
 

Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 



R E S O L U T I O N  No.

               BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, 
that we dispense with the reading of the individual bills inasmuch as each department head has approved
and signed bills in the following aggregate amount for their respective departments.

Public Affairs 3,296.32$         
Police Department 174.60$           
Community Center 460.00$           
Accounts & Finance (Clerks Office) 173,705.03$     
Accounts & Finance (Fire Department) 4,393.85$         
Department of Health & Safety 2,497.00$         
Streets and Public Improvements 22,403.18$       
Public Property 59,011.09$       
Seizure 4,619.26$         
Federal Customs 172.71$           
TIF 5,546.97$         
VIP 203,801.68$     
Water Department 810,325.40$     

TOTAL 1,290,407.09$  

  ADOPTED BY THE Council of the Village of Forest Park this 11th Day of September, 2023.

Ayes:
Nays:
Absent:

___________________________
Rory Hoskins, Mayor

ATTEST:

___________________________
Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-10-101-6120-121  AA Rental Center 08/16/2023 520.00            
100-10-101-6120-305  West Central Municipal Conf 08/18/2023 700.00            
100-10-101-6150-125 Moses Amidei 08/28/2023 308.96            
100-10-101-6150-125  West Central Municipal Conf 07/20/2023 495.00            
100-10-101-6150-152  Verizon Wireless 08/22/2023 300.19            
100-10-101-6150-152  Verizon Wireless 08/22/2023 42.17              
100-10-101-6150-220 Anastasie M. Senat 08/28/2023 495.00            
100-10-101-7000-150  Telcom Innovations Group LLC 08/17/2023 362.50            
100-10-101-7000-150  Telcom Innovations Group LLC 08/18/2023 72.50              

Public Affairs 3,296.32         



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-12-121-6120-305  Message in a Bottle 08/18/2023 80.00              
100-12-126-6140-112  Forest Printing Company 08/09/2023 94.60              

Police Department 174.60            



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-15-151-6140-200  Midwest Audio 08/04/2023 180.00            
100-15-154-6170-105  Advanced Parts & Services Inc 06/14/2023 280.00            

Community Center 460.00            



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-21-211-5005-002  Blue Cross-Blue Shield of Ill 08/17/2023 140,291.43     
100-21-211-5005-002  Fidelity Security Life Ins Co 08/22/2023 76.00              
100-21-211-5005-002  Fidelity Security Life Ins Co 08/22/2023 630.08            
100-21-211-5005-002  Guardian 08/22/2023 8,158.08         
100-21-211-6100-110  Lauterbach & Amen LLP 08/28/2023 6,189.90         
100-21-211-6140-140  Quill 08/09/2023 98.90              
100-21-211-6140-140  Quill 08/16/2023 38.07              
100-21-211-6150-116  Growing Community Media NFP 04/18/2023 50.00              
100-21-211-6150-116  Growing Community Media NFP 04/18/2023 50.00              
100-21-211-6150-150  AT&T 08/25/2023 111.95            
100-21-211-6150-150  AT&T 08/25/2023 55.99              
100-21-211-6150-150  AT&T 08/25/2023 50.63              
100-21-211-6190-003  POLICE PENSION FUND 08/25/2023 8,952.00         
100-21-211-6190-004  Firefighters Pension Fund 08/25/2023 8,952.00         

Accounts and Finance (Clerks Office) 173,705.03     



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-30-301-7000-040 W.S. Darley & Co. 08/28/2023 1,843.15         
100-30-302-6110-150  Verizon Wireless 08/22/2023 296.73            
100-30-302-6145-105 Ray O'Herron Co Inc 08/26/2023 151.98            
100-30-302-6145-105 Ray O'Herron Co Inc 08/28/2023 172.99            
100-30-302-6145-105 Collin Thomas 08/31/2023 81.00              
100-30-303-6145-300  Loyola EMS Department 08/15/2023 1,848.00         

Accounts and Finance (Fire Department) 4,393.85         



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-40-401-5000-017  AMS Electric Inc 08/25/2023 1,305.00         
100-40-401-5000-017  B&F Construction Code Service 07/31/2023 110.00            
100-40-401-5000-017 Raymond Traynor 08/28/2023 855.00            
100-40-402-6150-240  Growing Community Media NFP 08/30/2023 147.00            
100-40-403-6150-230  Elevator Inspection Services 08/23/2023 80.00              

Department of Health and Safety 2,497.00         



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-50-502-6180-160  Com Ed 08/18/2023 4,014.92         
100-50-502-6185-505  West Cook County Solid Waste 07/31/2023 18,388.26       

Streets and Public Improvements 22,403.18       



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-55-552-6180-114  Case Lots Inc 08/21/2023 598.80            
100-55-552-6180-114  First Ayd Corp. 08/17/2023 22.07              
100-55-552-6180-114  First Ayd Corp. 08/17/2023 119.40            
100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 08/17/2023 6,133.00         
100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 08/23/2023 918.82            
100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 08/28/2023 2,179.34         
100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 08/31/2023 387.00            
100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 08/31/2023 436.42            
100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 08/31/2023 4,450.97         
100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 08/31/2023 1,128.16         
100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 08/31/2023 2,327.30         
100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 08/31/2023 1,348.90         
100-55-553-6180-152  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 08/31/2023 595.00            
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 08/11/2023 75.42              
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 08/23/2023 623.39            
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 08/25/2023 24.90              
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 08/25/2023 24.48              
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 08/25/2023 24.27              
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 08/25/2023 28.01              
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 08/25/2023 262.97            
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 08/25/2023 143.15            
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 08/25/2023 191.09            
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 08/28/2023 34.12              
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 08/28/2023 27.80              
100-55-555-6180-100  Comcast 08/08/2023 200.01            
100-55-555-6180-100  Colley Elevator Co 06/30/2023 300.00            
100-55-555-6180-100  Utility Dynamics Corporation 08/24/2023 3,000.00         
100-55-555-6180-100  Illinois Alarm 06/01/2023 192.00            
100-55-555-6180-100  Illinois Alarm 09/01/2023 192.00            
100-55-555-6180-100  Quill 08/09/2023 104.84            
100-55-555-6180-100  PremiStar-North 08/28/2023 484.00            
100-55-555-6180-100  PremiStar-North 08/28/2023 1,300.47         
100-55-555-6180-110  Comcast 08/02/2023 50.60              
100-55-555-6180-110  Comcast 08/12/2023 2.11                
100-55-555-6180-110  Comcast 08/13/2023 128.95            
100-55-555-6180-115  Illinois Alarm 06/01/2023 165.00            
100-55-555-6180-115  Illinois Alarm 09/01/2023 165.00            



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-55-555-6180-120  Illinois Alarm 06/01/2023 165.00            
100-55-555-6180-120  Illinois Alarm 09/01/2023 165.00            
100-55-555-6180-130  Illinois Alarm 06/01/2023 165.00            
100-55-555-6180-130  Illinois Alarm 09/01/2023 165.00            
100-55-555-6180-130  PremiStar-North 08/29/2023 825.00            
100-55-555-6180-140  Comcast 08/07/2023 2.11                
100-55-555-6180-140  Comcast 08/22/2023 188.04            
100-55-555-6180-140  Comcast 08/28/2023 2.11                
100-55-555-6180-140  Illinois Alarm 06/01/2023 135.00            
100-55-555-6180-140  Illinois Alarm 09/01/2023 135.00            
100-55-570-6155-101  Mohr Oil Company 08/22/2023 15,898.93       
100-55-570-6155-106  CCP INDUSTRIES INC 08/23/2023 122.94            
100-55-570-6155-106  Fleet Safety Supply 08/11/2023 451.31            
100-55-570-6155-106  Fleet Safety Supply 08/21/2023 169.61            
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 08/14/2023 648.99            
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 08/14/2023 129.90            
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 08/14/2023 (12.00)             
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 08/15/2023 71.33              
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 08/15/2023 319.99            
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 08/15/2023 235.64            
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 08/16/2023 161.00            
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 08/17/2023 18.67              
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 08/18/2023 (49.28)             
100-55-570-6155-106  L.A.FASTENERS INC. 08/17/2023 224.96            
100-55-570-6155-106  Linde Gas North America LLC 08/21/2023 205.16            
100-55-570-6155-106  Linde Gas North America LLC 08/21/2023 72.50              
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 08/23/2023 101.09            
100-55-570-6155-110  Snap on Industrial 08/16/2023 258.27            
100-55-570-6155-110  Snap on Industrial 08/17/2023 23.40              
100-55-570-6155-112  Action Transmission & Auto 08/22/2023 4,450.00         
100-55-570-6155-112  Arlington Power Equipment Inc 06/29/2023 132.00            
100-55-570-6155-112  BC Body Craft Inc 08/09/2023 343.58            
100-55-570-6155-112  Commercial Tire Service 08/16/2023 506.04            
100-55-570-6155-112  Commercial Tire Service 08/25/2023 570.04            
100-55-580-6155-120  Bernie's Saw & Supply Inc 08/31/2023 80.00              
100-55-580-6180-210  JKS VENTURES INC 08/14/2023 90.00              
100-55-580-6180-302  Davis Tree Care 08/17/2023 2,095.00         



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-55-580-6180-302  West Central Municipal Conf 08/24/2023 575.00            
100-55-585-6180-305  U.S. Arbor Products Inc 08/16/2023 780.00            

Public Property 59,011.09       



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

230-00-000-6150-152  Verizon Wireless 08/22/2023 210.85            
230-00-000-6150-152  Verizon Wireless 08/22/2023 72.02              
230-00-000-6900-230  Eagle Uniform Company Inc 07/12/2023 220.00            
230-00-000-6900-230  J.G. Uniforms 08/14/2023 245.49            
230-00-000-6900-230 Ray O'Herron Co Inc 08/21/2023 1,245.81         
230-00-000-6900-230 Ray O'Herron Co Inc 08/21/2023 952.83            
230-00-000-6900-230 Ray O'Herron Co Inc 08/22/2023 1,508.26         
230-00-000-6900-230 Ray O'Herron Co Inc 08/23/2023 164.00            

Seizure 4,619.26         



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

232-00-000-6900-232  Comcast 08/22/2023 172.71            

Federal Customs 172.71            



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

302-00-000-6100-115  Lauterbach & Amen LLP 08/28/2023 430.05            
302-00-000-6100-115  Techno Consulting Inc 08/25/2023 250.00            
302-00-000-6185-700 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 08/21/2023 3,556.82         
304-00-000-6100-115  Lauterbach & Amen LLP 08/28/2023 430.05            
309-00-000-6100-115 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 08/24/2023 450.00            
309-00-000-6100-115  Lauterbach & Amen LLP 08/28/2023 430.05            

TIF 5,546.97         



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

312-00-000-6100-105 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 08/21/2023 3,454.00         
312-00-000-6100-105 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 08/24/2023 206.25            
312-00-000-6100-115  Lauterbach & Amen LLP 08/28/2023 430.05            
312-00-000-6150-152  Verizon Wireless 08/22/2023 38.01              
312-00-000-7000-108 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 08/21/2023 2,712.50         
312-00-000-7000-108  John Neri Construction Co Inc 08/16/2023 121,337.86     
312-00-000-7000-109 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 08/21/2023 20,657.50       
312-00-000-7000-109  Uno Construction Co Inc 08/30/2023 40,550.50       
312-00-000-7000-312 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 08/21/2023 1,710.00         
312-00-000-7000-312 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 08/21/2023 12,265.00       
312-00-000-7000-312  First Ayd Corp. 08/17/2023 330.65            
312-00-000-7000-312  First Ayd Corp. 08/17/2023 44.13              
312-00-000-7000-312  K-Five Hodgkins LLC 08/11/2023 21.52              
312-00-000-7000-312  K-Five Hodgkins LLC 08/22/2023 43.71              

VIP 203,801.68     



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

501-80-800-6100-105 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 08/24/2023 270.00            
501-80-800-6100-110  Lauterbach & Amen LLP 08/28/2023 6,189.90         
501-80-800-6110-105  Verizon Wireless 08/22/2023 36.01              
501-80-800-6150-150  AT&T 08/25/2023 59.95              
501-80-800-6150-154  Com Ed 08/10/2023 129.15            
501-80-800-6150-154  Com Ed 08/11/2023 20.15              
501-80-800-6150-154  Com Ed 08/25/2023 20.98              
501-80-800-6150-154  Com Ed 08/25/2023 54.58              
501-80-800-6150-154  Com Ed 08/28/2023 34.63              
501-80-800-6800-150  Clear View 08/30/2023 812.00            
501-80-800-6800-153  Comcast 08/06/2023 83.90              
501-80-800-7000-010  John Neri Construction Co Inc 08/16/2023 55,831.01       
501-80-800-7000-010  Uno Construction Co Inc 08/30/2023 750.00            
501-80-800-7000-020 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 08/21/2023 20,657.50       
501-80-800-7000-020 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 08/21/2023 210.00            
501-80-800-7000-020  Uno Construction Co Inc 08/30/2023 725,165.64     

Water Department 810,325.40     



 
1160735.1 

RESOLUTION NO. R-__________-23 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING PAY REQUEST #2 (FINAL) FOR THE 
15TH STREET SEWER SEPARATION PROJECT (CDBG PROJECT 2107-018) 

 FROM JOHN NERI CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. 
 

 WHEREAS, the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois ("Village"), awarded the 

contract for the 15th Street Sewer Separation Project (CDBG Project 2107-018) ("Project") to 

John Neri Construction Co., Inc. (“Contractor"); and 

 WHEREAS, Contractor has submitted its Pay Request #2 (Final) for completion of the 

work to date under the Project, a copy of which is attached hereto and made a part hereof; and 

 WHEREAS, the Pay Request #2 (Final) has been reviewed by the Village Engineer, who 

has determined that Contractor is entitled to compensation for its performance under the Project 

to date, pursuant to the Pay Request #2 (Final); and 

 WHEREAS, the Village will be obligated to make a payment on Pay Request #2 (Final) 

to Contractor in the amount of One Hundred Seventy-Seven Thousand One Hundred Sixty-Eight 

and 87/100 Dollars ($177,168.87); and 

 WHEREAS, it is necessary that the Mayor and Council of the Village approve Pay 

Request #2 (Final) to Contractor under the contract for the Project. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Council of the Village of 

Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1. The Council of the Village hereby approves Pay Request #2 (Final) to 

Contractor in the amount of One Hundred Seventy-Seven Thousand One Hundred Sixty-Eight 

and 87/100 Dollars ($177,168.87) under the contract for the Project with Contractor. 

 Section 2. The Village Clerk is directed to attest to the Mayor's signature on any and 

all documents, as necessary. 



 
1160735.1 

 Section 3. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage in the 

manner provided by law. 

 RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 11th 

day of September, 2023.  

 
 AYES: ___________________________ 
 
 NAYS: ___________________________ 
 
 ABSENT: _________________________  
 

APPROVED by me this 11th day of September, 2023. 
 
 
 
   ___________________________________ 

Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor  
 
 

ATTESTED and filed in my office, 
and published in pamphlet form 
this ______ day of September, 2023. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk  
  
 
 



 
1160735.1 

15TH STREET SEWER SEPARATION PROJECT (CDBG PROJECT 2107-018) 
PAY REQUEST #2 (FINAL) 



 
1160735.1 



 
1160735.1 



 
1160735.1 



 
1160735.1 



 
1160735.1 



 
1160735.1 



 
1160735.1 



 
1160735.1 



 
1160735.1 



 
1160735.1 

 



1161523.1 

RESOLUTION NO. R-__________-23 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF 
PAY REQUEST #6 FOR THE 2023 WATER MAIN  
PROJECT TO UNO CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. 

(WILCOX & FERDINAND) 
 

 WHEREAS, the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois ("Village"), awarded the 

contract for the 2023 Water Main Project ("Project") to Uno Construction Co., Inc. 

(“Contractor"); and 

 WHEREAS, Contractor has submitted its Pay Request #6 for completed work to date 

under the Project, a copy of which is attached hereto and made a part hereof; and 

 WHEREAS, the Pay Request #6 has been reviewed by the Village Engineer, who has 

determined that Contractor is entitled to compensation for certain services performed under the 

Project, pursuant to the Pay Request #6; and 

 WHEREAS, the Village will be obligated to make a payment on Pay Request #6 to 

Contractor in the amount of Seven Hundred Sixty-Six Thousand Four Hundred Sixty-Six and 

14/100 ($766,466.14); and 

 WHEREAS, it is necessary that the Mayor and Council of the Village approve Pay 

Request #6 to Contractor under the contract for the Project. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Council of the Village of 

Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1. The Council of the Village hereby approves Pay Request #6 to Contractor 

in the amount of Seven Hundred Sixty-Six Thousand Four Hundred Sixty-Six and 14/100 

($766,466.14) under the contract for the Project with Contractor. 

 Section 2. The Village Clerk is directed to attest to the Mayor's signature on any and 

all documents, as necessary. 



1161523.1 

 Section 3. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and 

adoption in accordance with law. 

 ADOPTED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 11th 

day of September, 2023.  

 
 AYES: ___________________________ 
 
 NAYS: ___________________________ 
 
 ABSENT: _________________________  
 

APPROVED by me this 11th day of September, 2023. 
 
 
 
   ___________________________________ 

Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor  
 
 

ATTESTED and filed in my office, 
and published in pamphlet form 
this ______ day of September, 2023. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Vanessa Moritz, Clerk  
  
 
 



1161523.1 

UNO CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. 
2023 WATER MAIN PROJECT 

(WILCOX & FERDINAND) 
PAY REQUEST #6 

 



1161523.1 



1161523.1 



1161523.1 



1161523.1 



1161523.1 





1161523.1 

 



 

1160730.1  

 

Resolution R - ___ - 23 

 

A RESOLUTION PROPOSING A REDEVELOPMENT 

PLAN AND PROJECT FOR, AND THE DESIGNATION OF, THE 

CIRCLE HARLEM TAX INCREMENT 

FINANCING REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA AND THE ADOPTION  

OF TAX INCREMENT ALLOCATION FINANCING THEREFOR, 

CONVENING A JOINT REVIEW BOARD AND 

CALLING A PUBLIC HEARING IN CONNECTION THEREWITH 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act, supplemented 

and amended (the “Act”), the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois (the “Village”) is 

authorized to approve a redevelopment plan for and to designate redevelopment project area and 

adopt tax increment allocation financing therefor; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Village Council of the Village (the “Corporate Authorities”) 

have heretofore caused a study to be conducted to determine the conditions in that part of the Village 

legally described in Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof and generally described as the 

parcels on the west side of Harlem Avenue and the north Village boundary along the Chicago 

Transit Authority (“CTA”)/Union Pacific Railroad (“UPPR”) rail tracks, and generally bounded by 

Madison Street to the south, the CTA/UPPR rail tracks and the Village boundary to the north, 

Harlem Avenue to the east, and Lathrop Avenue to the west, and includes all adjacent rights of way, 

including to the centerline of Harlem Avenue, the east boundary of the Village, and depicted in 

Exhibit A-1, attached hereto and made a part hereof; and 

 WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities have determined that said territory would qualify as 

a “Redevelopment Project Area” as defined in the Act and that said territory on the whole has not 

been subject to growth and development through private enterprise and would not reasonably be 

anticipated to be developed without the adoption of a redevelopment plan and the use of tax 



 

1160730.1  

 

increment allocation financing as provided in the Act; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities have heretofore and it hereby is determined that it is 

advisable that the Village afford itself of the provisions of the Act and by ordinance approve a 

redevelopment plan and project (the “Redevelopment Plan and Project”) and designate said territory 

as legally described in Exhibit A as a redevelopment project area to be known as the “Circle Harlem 

Redevelopment Project Area” (the “Redevelopment Project Area”), and also that the Village by 

ordinance adopt tax increment allocation financing in order to pay all or a portion of the eligible 

redevelopment project costs for the Project in the Redevelopment Project Area, as provided in the 

Act; and 

WHEREAS, the Act requires the Village to conduct a public hearing prior to the adoption of 

ordinances approving the Redevelopment Plan and Project, designating  the Redevelopment Project 

Area, and adopting tax increment allocation financing, at which hearing any interested person or 

affected taxing district may file with the Village Clerk written objections to and may be heard orally 

with respect to the proposed approval of the Redevelopment Plan and Project, designation of the 

Redevelopment Project Area, and adoption of a tax increment allocation financing therefor; and 

WHEREAS, the Act further requires that prior to holding a public hearing, the Village shall 

convene a joint review board consisting of a representative selected by each community college 

district; local elementary school district and high school district or each local community unit school 

district; park district; library district; township; fire protection district; and county that will have the 

authority to directly levy taxes on the property within the proposed Redevelopment Project Area at 

the time that the proposed Redevelopment Project Area is approved, a representative selected by the 

Village, and a public member selected in accordance with the Act, to consider the subject matter of 

the public hearing; and  



 

1160730.1  

 

 WHEREAS, the Act further requires that the time and place of such public hearing be fixed 

by ordinance or resolution adopted by the Corporate Authorities; and  

WHEREAS, the Act further requires that not less than ten (10) days prior to adopting such 

ordinance or resolution fixing the time and place of a public hearing, the Village must make 

available for public inspection a redevelopment plan or a separate report that provides in reasonable 

detail the basis for the proposed Redevelopment Project Area’s qualifying as a “redevelopment 

project area” under the Act; and 

WHEREAS, the firm of Ryan, LLC has conducted an eligibility survey of the proposed 

Redevelopment Project Area and has prepared its report (the “Eligibility Report”) that said proposed 

area qualifies as a “redevelopment project area” as defined in the Act, which survey and findings 

have been presented to the Corporate Authorities and are now on file in the official files and records 

of the Village; and 

WHEREAS, the Eligibility Report  and Redevelopment Plan and Project have heretofore 

been on file and available for public inspection for at least ten (10) days prior to the adoption of this 

Resolution in the offices of the Village Clerk as required under the Act; and  

WHEREAS, the Act requires that notice of the public hearing be given by publication and 

mailing; and 

WHEREAS, the Act requires that the Village shall provide notice of the availability of the 

Redevelopment Plan and Project and Eligibility Report, including how to obtain such information, 

by mail within a reasonable time after the adoption of this Resolution, to all residential addresses 

that, after a good faith effort, the Village determines are located within 750 feet of the boundaries of 

the proposed Redevelopment Project Area; and 



 

1160730.1  

 

WHEREAS, implementation of the Redevelopment Plan and Project shall not result in the 

displacement of residents from 10 or more inhabited residential units within the Redevelopment 

Project Area and the Redevelopment Project Area does not include 75 or more inhabited residential 

units. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Village Council of the Village of Forest 

Park, Cook County, Illinois as follows: 

Section 1. That the foregoing recital clauses to this Resolution are adopted as findings of 

the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Forest Park and are incorporated herein by specific 

reference. 

Section 2. The approval of the Redevelopment Plan and Project, the designation of the 

Redevelopment Project Area, and the adoption of tax increment allocation financing therefore are 

hereby proposed. 

Section 3. A public hearing shall be held by the Mayor and Village Council of the 

Village of Forest Park, at 6:45 p.m. on the 13th day of November 2023, at the Forest Park Village 

Hall, 517 Desplaines Avenue, Forest Park, Illinois, for the purpose of hearing from any interested 

persons or affected taxing districts regarding the proposed approval of the Redevelopment Plan and 

Project, designation of the Redevelopment Project Area, and adoption of tax increment allocation 

financing therefor. 

Section 4. Notice of public hearing, substantially in the form attached hereto and made a 

part hereof as Exhibit B, shall be published at least twice, the publications to be not more than 30 nor 

less than 10 days prior to the public hearing, in a newspaper of general circulation within the taxing 

districts having property in the Redevelopment Project Area.  In addition, notice shall be mailed by 

certified mail not less than ten (10) days prior to the date set for the public hearing, addressed to the 



 

1160730.1  

 

person or persons in whose name the general taxes for the last preceding year were paid on each lot, 

block, tract, or parcel of land lying within the Redevelopment Project Area.  In the event taxes for 

the last preceding year were not paid, the notice shall also be sent to the persons last listed on the tax 

rolls within the preceding three years as the owners of such property.  

Section 5. Notice shall also be given by certified mail to all taxing districts of which 

taxable property is included in the Redevelopment Project Area and to the Illinois Department of 

Commerce and Economic Opportunity (f/k/a Illinois Department of Commerce and Community 

Affairs) not less than 45 days prior to the public hearing, and such notice shall also include an 

invitation to each taxing district and the Illinois Department of Commerce and Economic 

Opportunity (f/k/a Illinois Department of Commerce and Community Affairs) to submit written 

comments prior to the date of the public hearing to the Village, to the attention of the Village Clerk, 

517 Desplaines Avenue, Forest Park, Illinois, 60130, concerning the subject matter of the public 

hearing.  Each such mailed notice shall include a copy of the proposed Redevelopment Plan. 

Section 6. Notice of availability of the Redevelopment Plan and Project and Eligibility 

Report, including how to obtain information, shall also be given by mail within a reasonable time 

after the adoption of this Resolution to all residential addresses that, after a good faith effort, the 

Village determines are located within 750 feet of the boundaries of the Redevelopment Project Area. 

Section 7. Since August 31, 2023, a draft of the Redevelopment Plan and Project and 

Eligibility Report has been on file in the Office of the Village Clerk at the Forest Park Village Hall, 

517 Desplaines Avenue, Forest Park, Illinois, 60130, and since has been available for public 

inspection. 

Section 8. A joint review board as set forth in the Act is hereby convened and the board 

shall meet, review such documents, and issue such report as set forth in the Act.  The first meeting of 



 

1160730.1  

 

said joint review board shall be held at 11:00 a.m. on the 27th day of September, 2023, at the Forest 

Park Village Hall, 517 Desplaines Avenue, Forest Park, Illinois. 

Section 9. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage in the manner 

provided by law. 

ADOPTED  this 11th day of September, 2023, pursuant to a roll call vote as follows: 

AYES: ____________________________________ 

  

NAYS:____________________________________ 

 

  ABSENT:_________________________________ 

 

  ABSTENTION:____________________________  

 

APPROVED by me the 11th day of September, 2023. 

       

             

      ________________________________________ 

      Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor of the 

      Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois 

 

 

ATTESTED and filed in my office, 

this _____ day of September, 2023. 

 

_______________________________ 

Vanessa Moritz, Clerk of the Village 

of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois 



 

1160730.1  

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

Proposed Circle Harlem TIF District - Legal Description 

 

 

THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 39, RANGE 12 

EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, DESCRIBED 

AS FOLLOWS: 

 

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID 

SECTION 12; THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST QUARTER 

TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE 

CHICAGO & NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY, FOR A POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE 

SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST QUARTER TO A POINT OF 

INTERSECTION WITH THE EASTERLY EXTENSION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF AN EAST-

WEST 20-FOOT-WIDE PUBLIC ALLEY LYING NORTH OF MADISON STREET; THENCE 

WEST ALONG SAID EASTERLY EXTENSION AND THE SOUTH LINE OF THE EAST-

WEST 20-FOOT-WIDE PUBLIC ALLEY LYING NORTH OF MADISON STREET TO A POINT 

OF INTERSECTION WITH THE SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST LINE OF A 

NORTH-SOUTH 20 FOOT PUBLIC ALLEY LYING WEST OF HARLEM AVENUE; THENCE 

NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF THE NORTH-SOUTH 20 FOOT PUBLIC ALLEY 

LYING WEST OF HARLEM AVENUE TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE 

OF FRANKLIN STREET; THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 

FRANKLIN STREET TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE SOUTHERLY 

EXTENSION OF THE EAST LINE OF THE WEST 34 FEET OF THE EAST 53 FEET OF LOTS 

6 AND 9 IN BLOCK 1 IN RAILROAD ADDITION TO HARLEM AS RECORDED NOVEMBER 

26, 1858; THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE WEST 34 FEET OF THE EAST 

53 FEET OF LOTS 6 AND 9 IN BLOCK 1 TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF AN EAST-

WEST 20-FOOT-WIDE PUBLIC ALLEY LYING NORTH OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET; 

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE EAST-WEST 20-FOOT-WIDE PUBLIC 

ALLEY LYING NORTH OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION 

WITH THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF ELGIN AVE; THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID 

WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF ELGIN AVE TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT-

OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID 

SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE TO THE A POINT ON THE EAST 

LINE OF THE WEST 4 FEET OF LOT 2 IN BLOCK 2 IN SAID RAILROAD ADDITION TO 

HARLEM; THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE WEST 4 FEET OF LOT 2 IN 

BLOCK 2 IN RAILROAD ADDITION TO HARLEM AND THE SOUTHERLY EXTENSION 

THEREOF TO A POINT ON SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE EAST-WEST 20-FOOT-WIDE 

PUBLIC ALLEY LYING NORTH OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET; THENCE WEST ALONG 

SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE EAST-WEST 20-FOOT-WIDE PUBLIC ALLEY LYING NORTH 

OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET TO A POINT ON THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 

MARENGO AVE; THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 

MARENGO AVE TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE EASTERLY EXTENSION OF 

THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 100 FEET OF LOT 1 IN BLOCK 3 IN SAID RAILROAD 



 

1160730.1  

 

ADDITION TO HARLEM; THENCE WEST ALONG SAID EASTERLY EXTENSION AND 

THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 100 FEET OF LOT 1 IN BLOCK 3 IN SAID RAILROAD 

ADDITION TO HARLEM TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 1 IN BLOCK 3; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF LOT 1 IN BLOCK 3 TO A POINT ON THE 

SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE, SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE 

NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 1 IN BLOCK 3; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG 

A RADIAL LINE TO CIRCLE AVENUE TO A POINT OPPOSITE AND ADJACENT TO SAID 

NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 1 IN BLOCK 3, SAID POINT BEING ON THE 

NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID CIRCLE AVENUE; THENCE 

NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE 

AVENUE TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH A LINE 50 FEET SOUTHWESTERLY OF 

(MEASURED PERPENDICULARLY) AND PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTHWESTERLY LINE 

OF THE TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED BY THE CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN 

RAILWAY COMPANY TO MAX GOLDSTEIN, JOSEPH GOLDSTEIN, EVA GOLDSTEIN 

AND BESSIE GOLDSTEIN BY QUIT CLAIM DEED RECORDED AUGUST 23, 1963 AS 

DOCUMENT NO. 18893094; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID LINE 50 FEET 

SOUTHWESTERLY OF (MEASURED PERPENDICULARLY) AND PARALLEL WITH THE 

SOUTHWESTERLY LINE OF THE TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED BY THE CHICAGO AND 

NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY TO MAX GOLDSTEIN, JOSEPH GOLDSTEIN, 

EVA GOLDSTEIN AND BESSIE GOLDSTEIN TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH A 

LINE 102 FEET SOUTH OF AND PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF THE 

CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY, EAST OF HARLEM AVENUE, 

EXTENDED WEST; THENCE WEST ALONG SAID LINE 102 FEET SOUTH OF AND 

PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF THE CHICAGO AND 

NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY A DISTANCE OF 230 FEET, MORE OR LESS; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG A LINE BEING AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM SAID SOUTH 

BOUNDARY LINE OF THE CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY, 

EAST OF HARLEM AVENUE, EXTENDED WEST TO A POINT ON A LINE BEING 8.50 

FEET SOUTH OF AND PARALLEL WITH THE CENTERLINE OF SPUR TRACK I.C.C. 

NUMBER 367 OF SAID CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY; THENCE 

WEST ALONG SAID LINE BEING 8.50 FEET SOUTH OF AND PARALLEL WITH THE 

CENTERLINE OF SPUR TRACK I.C.C. NUMBER 367 OF THE CHICAGO AND 

NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY, 162 FEET TO A POINT ON A LINE DRAWN 

PERPENDICULAR TO THE NORTH LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET THROUGH A 

POINT THEREIN WHICH IS 41.0 FEET WEST OF THE INTERSECTION OF THE NORTH 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET AND SAID NORTHWESTERLY 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE; THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID LINE 

DRAWN PERPENDICULAR TO THE NORTH LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET 

THROUGH A POINT THEREIN WHICH IS 41.0 FEET WEST OF THE INTERSECTION OF 

THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET AND SAID 

NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE, 187.30 FEET; THENCE 

SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG A STRAIGHT LINE A DISTANCE OF 64.4 FEET TO A POINT 90 

FEET NORTHWESTERLY OF AND MEASURED RADIALLY TO THE NORTHWESTERLY 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID CIRCLE AVENUE ALONG A LINE DRAWN FROM A 

POINT ON SAID NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE, 121.5 



 

1160730.1  

 

FEET CHORD DISTANCE FROM SAID INTERSECTION OF THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY 

LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET AND SAID NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE 

OF CIRCLE AVENUE; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG THE LAST DESCRIBED LINE 

TO SAID POINT BEING 121.5 FEET CHORD DISTANCE FROM SAID INTERSECTION OF 

THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET AND SAID 

NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE; THENCE 

NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE 

AVENUE TO A POINT BEING OPPOSITE AND ADJACENT TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER 

OF LOT 4 IN SAID BLOCK 3 IN RAILROAD ADDITION TO HARLEM; THENCE 

SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG A LINE TO SAID NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 4 IN SAID 

BLOCK 3 IN RAILROAD ADDITION TO HARLEM; THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE EAST 

LINE OF SAID LOT 4 IN SAID BLOCK 3 IN RAILROAD ADDITION TO HARLEM AND THE 

SOUTHERLY EXTENSION THEREOF TO A POINT ON SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE 

OF FRANKLIN STREET; THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 

FRANKLIN STREET TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH SAID SOUTHEASTERLY 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID 

SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE TO A POINT BEING 

OPPOSITE AND ADJACENT  TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION OF SAID 

NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE AND THE SOUTH LINE 

OF THE NORTH 108 FEET OF LOT 1 IN BLOCK 1 IN THE SUBDIVISION BY THE CHICAGO 

AND NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY OF PART OF THE RESERVATION FOR 

RAILROAD PURPOSES, AS SHOWN ON THE PLAT OF RAILROAD ADDITION TO THE 

TOWN OF HARLEM, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED NOVEMBER 14, 

1881 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 358829; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG A LINE TO 

SAID POINT OF INTERSECTION; THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE 

NORTH 108 FEET OF LOT 1 IN BLOCK 1 TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF THE WEST 

8.0 FEET OF SAID LOT 1 IN BLOCK 1; THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE 

WEST 8.0 FEET OF SAID LOT 1 IN BLOCK 1 TO A POINT ON SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-

WAY LINE OF FRANKLIN STREET; THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-

WAY LINE OF FRANKLIN STREET TO A POINT OPPOSITE AND ADJACENT TO A POINT 

BEING 606.90 FEET WEST OF THE INTERSECTION OF THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE 

OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET AND SAID NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 

CIRCLE AVENUE; THENCE NORTH ALONG A LINE TO SAID POINT BEING 606.90 FEET 

WEST OF THE INTERSECTION OF THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID 

FRANKLIN STREET AND THE NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE 

AVENUE; THENCE NORTH ALONG A LINE AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE NORTH 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET, A DISTANCE OF 324.79 FEET TO A 

POINT 9 FEET NORTHERLY, AS MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE 

CENTERLINE OF SPUR TRACK I.C.C. NO. 760 OF THE CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN 

RAILWAY COMPANY, AS NOW LOCATED AND ESTABLISHED; THENCE WESTERLY 

ALONG A LINE PARALLEL WITH SAID CENTERLINE OF THE SPUR TRACK, A 

DISTANCE OF 135.99 TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 3 IN “BROWN STREET 

STATION” RESUBDIVISION OF LOTS 1 AND 2 IN SILVER MOON SUBDIVISION, 

ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED SEPTEMBER 20, 1996 AS DOCUMENT 

NUMBER 96-722111 AND RESUBDIVISION OF PLAT RECORDED AS DOCUMENT 



 

1160730.1  

 

NUMBER 97833582; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE NORTHERLY LINE OF 

SAID LOT 3 TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER THEREOF; THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE 

WESTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 3 TO A POINT ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 2 IN SAID 

“BROWN STREET STATION” RESUBDIVISION; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG 

SAID NORTH LINE OF LOT 2 TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 2, SAID 

NORTHWEST CORNER ALSO BEING THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 1 IN THE 

AFORESAID “BROWN STREET STATION” RESUBDIVISION OF LOTS 1 AND 2 IN SILVER 

MOON SUBDIVISION; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID 

LOT 1 TO A POINT OF CURVATURE; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID NORTH LINE 

ON A CURVE CONCAVE TO THE SOUTHWEST TO A POINT OF NON-TANGENCY; 

THENCE CONTINUING WESTERLY ALONG SAID NORTH LINE TO THE NORTHWEST 

CORNER OF SAID LOT 1; THENCE WEST ALONG THE WESTERLY EXTENSION OF SAID 

NORTH LINE OF LOT 1 TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE WEST LINE OF THE 

SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 12; THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST 

LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 12 TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION 

WITH THE AFORESAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE CHICAGO & 

NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY; THENCE EASTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-

OF-WAY LINE OF THE CHICAGO & NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY TO THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING. 

 

 



 

1160730.1  

 

EXHIBIT A-1 

 

Proposed Circle Harlem TIF District - Map 

 

 

 



 

1160730.1  

 

EXHIBIT B 

 

 Notice of Public Hearing 

   

VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS CIRCLE HARLEM TAX 

INCREMENT FINANCING REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA 

 

Notice is hereby given that on November 13, 2023 at 6:45 p.m. at the Forest Park Village Hall, 517 

Desplaines Avenue, Forest Park, Illinois, a public hearing will be held to consider the approval of a 

redevelopment plan and project (“Redevelopment Plan and Project”) for the designation of a 

redevelopment project area (“Redevelopment Project Area”) to be known as the "Circle Harlem 

Redevelopment Project Area” and the adoption of tax increment allocation financing therefor.  The 

Redevelopment Project Area consists of the territory legally described as:   

 

THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 39, RANGE 12 

EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, DESCRIBED 

AS FOLLOWS: 

 

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID 

SECTION 12; THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST QUARTER 

TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE 

CHICAGO & NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY, FOR A POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE 

SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST QUARTER TO A POINT OF 

INTERSECTION WITH THE EASTERLY EXTENSION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF AN EAST-

WEST 20-FOOT-WIDE PUBLIC ALLEY LYING NORTH OF MADISON STREET; THENCE 

WEST ALONG SAID EASTERLY EXTENSION AND THE SOUTH LINE OF THE EAST-

WEST 20-FOOT-WIDE PUBLIC ALLEY LYING NORTH OF MADISON STREET TO A POINT 

OF INTERSECTION WITH THE SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST LINE OF A 

NORTH-SOUTH 20 FOOT PUBLIC ALLEY LYING WEST OF HARLEM AVENUE; THENCE 

NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF THE NORTH-SOUTH 20 FOOT PUBLIC ALLEY 

LYING WEST OF HARLEM AVENUE TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE 

OF FRANKLIN STREET; THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 

FRANKLIN STREET TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE SOUTHERLY 

EXTENSION OF THE EAST LINE OF THE WEST 34 FEET OF THE EAST 53 FEET OF LOTS 

6 AND 9 IN BLOCK 1 IN RAILROAD ADDITION TO HARLEM AS RECORDED NOVEMBER 

26, 1858; THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE WEST 34 FEET OF THE EAST 

53 FEET OF LOTS 6 AND 9 IN BLOCK 1 TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF AN EAST-

WEST 20-FOOT-WIDE PUBLIC ALLEY LYING NORTH OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET; 

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE EAST-WEST 20-FOOT-WIDE PUBLIC 

ALLEY LYING NORTH OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION 

WITH THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF ELGIN AVE; THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID 

WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF ELGIN AVE TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT-

OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID 

SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE TO THE A POINT ON THE EAST 

LINE OF THE WEST 4 FEET OF LOT 2 IN BLOCK 2 IN SAID RAILROAD ADDITION TO 



 

1160730.1  

 

HARLEM; THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE WEST 4 FEET OF LOT 2 IN 

BLOCK 2 IN RAILROAD ADDITION TO HARLEM AND THE SOUTHERLY EXTENSION 

THEREOF TO A POINT ON SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE EAST-WEST 20-FOOT-WIDE 

PUBLIC ALLEY LYING NORTH OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET; THENCE WEST ALONG 

SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE EAST-WEST 20-FOOT-WIDE PUBLIC ALLEY LYING NORTH 

OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET TO A POINT ON THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 

MARENGO AVE; THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 

MARENGO AVE TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE EASTERLY EXTENSION OF 

THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 100 FEET OF LOT 1 IN BLOCK 3 IN SAID RAILROAD 

ADDITION TO HARLEM; THENCE WEST ALONG SAID EASTERLY EXTENSION AND 

THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 100 FEET OF LOT 1 IN BLOCK 3 IN SAID RAILROAD 

ADDITION TO HARLEM TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 1 IN BLOCK 3; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF LOT 1 IN BLOCK 3 TO A POINT ON THE 

SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE, SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE 

NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 1 IN BLOCK 3; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG 

A RADIAL LINE TO CIRCLE AVENUE TO A POINT OPPOSITE AND ADJACENT TO SAID 

NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 1 IN BLOCK 3, SAID POINT BEING ON THE 

NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID CIRCLE AVENUE; THENCE 

NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE 

AVENUE TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH A LINE 50 FEET SOUTHWESTERLY OF 

(MEASURED PERPENDICULARLY) AND PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTHWESTERLY LINE 

OF THE TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED BY THE CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN 

RAILWAY COMPANY TO MAX GOLDSTEIN, JOSEPH GOLDSTEIN, EVA GOLDSTEIN 

AND BESSIE GOLDSTEIN BY QUIT CLAIM DEED RECORDED AUGUST 23, 1963 AS 

DOCUMENT NO. 18893094; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID LINE 50 FEET 

SOUTHWESTERLY OF (MEASURED PERPENDICULARLY) AND PARALLEL WITH THE 

SOUTHWESTERLY LINE OF THE TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED BY THE CHICAGO AND 

NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY TO MAX GOLDSTEIN, JOSEPH GOLDSTEIN, 

EVA GOLDSTEIN AND BESSIE GOLDSTEIN TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH A 

LINE 102 FEET SOUTH OF AND PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF THE 

CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY, EAST OF HARLEM AVENUE, 

EXTENDED WEST; THENCE WEST ALONG SAID LINE 102 FEET SOUTH OF AND 

PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF THE CHICAGO AND 

NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY A DISTANCE OF 230 FEET, MORE OR LESS; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG A LINE BEING AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM SAID SOUTH 

BOUNDARY LINE OF THE CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY, 

EAST OF HARLEM AVENUE, EXTENDED WEST TO A POINT ON A LINE BEING 8.50 

FEET SOUTH OF AND PARALLEL WITH THE CENTERLINE OF SPUR TRACK I.C.C. 

NUMBER 367 OF SAID CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY; THENCE 

WEST ALONG SAID LINE BEING 8.50 FEET SOUTH OF AND PARALLEL WITH THE 

CENTERLINE OF SPUR TRACK I.C.C. NUMBER 367 OF THE CHICAGO AND 

NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY, 162 FEET TO A POINT ON A LINE DRAWN 

PERPENDICULAR TO THE NORTH LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET THROUGH A 

POINT THEREIN WHICH IS 41.0 FEET WEST OF THE INTERSECTION OF THE NORTH 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET AND SAID NORTHWESTERLY 



 

1160730.1  

 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE; THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID LINE 

DRAWN PERPENDICULAR TO THE NORTH LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET 

THROUGH A POINT THEREIN WHICH IS 41.0 FEET WEST OF THE INTERSECTION OF 

THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET AND SAID 

NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE, 187.30 FEET; THENCE 

SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG A STRAIGHT LINE A DISTANCE OF 64.4 FEET TO A POINT 90 

FEET NORTHWESTERLY OF AND MEASURED RADIALLY TO THE NORTHWESTERLY 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID CIRCLE AVENUE ALONG A LINE DRAWN FROM A 

POINT ON SAID NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE, 121.5 

FEET CHORD DISTANCE FROM SAID INTERSECTION OF THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY 

LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET AND SAID NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE 

OF CIRCLE AVENUE; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG THE LAST DESCRIBED LINE 

TO SAID POINT BEING 121.5 FEET CHORD DISTANCE FROM SAID INTERSECTION OF 

THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET AND SAID 

NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE; THENCE 

NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE 

AVENUE TO A POINT BEING OPPOSITE AND ADJACENT TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER 

OF LOT 4 IN SAID BLOCK 3 IN RAILROAD ADDITION TO HARLEM; THENCE 

SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG A LINE TO SAID NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 4 IN SAID 

BLOCK 3 IN RAILROAD ADDITION TO HARLEM; THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE EAST 

LINE OF SAID LOT 4 IN SAID BLOCK 3 IN RAILROAD ADDITION TO HARLEM AND THE 

SOUTHERLY EXTENSION THEREOF TO A POINT ON SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE 

OF FRANKLIN STREET; THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 

FRANKLIN STREET TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH SAID SOUTHEASTERLY 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID 

SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE TO A POINT BEING 

OPPOSITE AND ADJACENT  TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION OF SAID 

NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE AND THE SOUTH LINE 

OF THE NORTH 108 FEET OF LOT 1 IN BLOCK 1 IN THE SUBDIVISION BY THE CHICAGO 

AND NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY OF PART OF THE RESERVATION FOR 

RAILROAD PURPOSES, AS SHOWN ON THE PLAT OF RAILROAD ADDITION TO THE 

TOWN OF HARLEM, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED NOVEMBER 14, 

1881 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 358829; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG A LINE TO 

SAID POINT OF INTERSECTION; THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE 

NORTH 108 FEET OF LOT 1 IN BLOCK 1 TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF THE WEST 

8.0 FEET OF SAID LOT 1 IN BLOCK 1; THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE 

WEST 8.0 FEET OF SAID LOT 1 IN BLOCK 1 TO A POINT ON SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-

WAY LINE OF FRANKLIN STREET; THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-

WAY LINE OF FRANKLIN STREET TO A POINT OPPOSITE AND ADJACENT TO A POINT 

BEING 606.90 FEET WEST OF THE INTERSECTION OF THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE 

OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET AND SAID NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 

CIRCLE AVENUE; THENCE NORTH ALONG A LINE TO SAID POINT BEING 606.90 FEET 

WEST OF THE INTERSECTION OF THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID 

FRANKLIN STREET AND THE NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE 

AVENUE; THENCE NORTH ALONG A LINE AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE NORTH 



 

1160730.1  

 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET, A DISTANCE OF 324.79 FEET TO A 

POINT 9 FEET NORTHERLY, AS MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE 

CENTERLINE OF SPUR TRACK I.C.C. NO. 760 OF THE CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN 

RAILWAY COMPANY, AS NOW LOCATED AND ESTABLISHED; THENCE WESTERLY 

ALONG A LINE PARALLEL WITH SAID CENTERLINE OF THE SPUR TRACK, A 

DISTANCE OF 135.99 TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 3 IN “BROWN STREET 

STATION” RESUBDIVISION OF LOTS 1 AND 2 IN SILVER MOON SUBDIVISION, 

ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED SEPTEMBER 20, 1996 AS DOCUMENT 

NUMBER 96-722111 AND RESUBDIVISION OF PLAT RECORDED AS DOCUMENT 

NUMBER 97833582; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE NORTHERLY LINE OF 

SAID LOT 3 TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER THEREOF; THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE 

WESTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 3 TO A POINT ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 2 IN SAID 

“BROWN STREET STATION” RESUBDIVISION; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG 

SAID NORTH LINE OF LOT 2 TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 2, SAID 

NORTHWEST CORNER ALSO BEING THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 1 IN THE 

AFORESAID “BROWN STREET STATION” RESUBDIVISION OF LOTS 1 AND 2 IN SILVER 

MOON SUBDIVISION; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID 

LOT 1 TO A POINT OF CURVATURE; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID NORTH LINE 

ON A CURVE CONCAVE TO THE SOUTHWEST TO A POINT OF NON-TANGENCY; 

THENCE CONTINUING WESTERLY ALONG SAID NORTH LINE TO THE NORTHWEST 

CORNER OF SAID LOT 1; THENCE WEST ALONG THE WESTERLY EXTENSION OF SAID 

NORTH LINE OF LOT 1 TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE WEST LINE OF THE 

SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 12; THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST 

LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 12 TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION 

WITH THE AFORESAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE CHICAGO & 

NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY; THENCE EASTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-

OF-WAY LINE OF THE CHICAGO & NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY TO THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING. 

 

The Redevelopment Project Area is generally described as the parcels on the west side of 

Harlem Avenue and the north Village boundary along the Chicago Transit Authority (“CTA”)/Union 

Pacific Railroad (“UPPR”) rail tracks, and generally bounded by Madison Street to the south, the 

CTA/UPPR rail tracks and the Village boundary to the north, Harlem Avenue to the east, and 

Lathrop Avenue to the west, and includes all adjacent rights of way, including to the centerline of 

Harlem Avenue, the east boundary of the Village. 

 

There will be considered at the public hearing the Redevelopment Plan and Project for the 

Redevelopment Project Area.  The Redevelopment Plan and Project, including Eligibility Report, as 

proposed is on file and available for public inspection at the office of the Village Clerk, 517 

Desplaines Avenue, Forest Park, Illinois.  The proposed Redevelopment Plan and Project includes 

the acquisition and conveyance of land in the Redevelopment Project Area, demolition, clearance 

and related site preparation activities, the construction, acquisition and installation of certain public 

works and improvements, if any, including, but not limited to, streets, storm sewers, water mains, 

sanitary sewers, traffic signalization, curbs, gutters, landscaping and public facilities including 



 

1160730.1  

 

parking areas and related costs and expenses, all as provided in the Tax Increment Allocation 

Redevelopment Act, as supplemented and amended. 

 

Prior to the date of the public hearing, each taxing district of which taxable property is 

included in the Redevelopment Project Area and the Illinois Department of Commerce and 

Economic Opportunity (f/k/a Illinois Department of Commerce and Community Affairs) may submit 

written comments to the Village, to the attention of the Village Clerk, 517 Desplaines Avenue, 

Forest Park, Illinois, 60130. 

 

There is hereby convened a joint review board to consider the proposed approval of the 

Redevelopment Plan and Project designation of the Redevelopment Project Area and adoption of tax 

increment allocation financing therefor.  The joint review board shall consist of a representative 

selected by each community college district; local elementary school district and high school district 

or each local community unit school district; park district; library district; township; fire protection 

district; and county that has authority to directly levy taxes on the property within the 

Redevelopment Project Area; a representative selected by the Village; and a public member selected 

in accordance with the Act.  The first meeting of said joint review board shall be held at 11:00 a.m. 

on the 27th day of September, 2023, at the Forest Park Village Hall, 517 Desplaines Avenue, Forest 

Park, Illinois, 60130. 

 

At the public hearing, all interested persons or affected taxing districts may file written 

objections with the Village Clerk and may be heard orally with respect to any issues regarding the 

approval of the Redevelopment Plan and Project, the designation of the Redevelopment Project 

Area, and the adoption of tax increment allocation financing therefor.  The hearing may be continued 

by the Village Council without further notice other than a motion to be entered upon the minutes of 

the hearing fixing the time and place of the continued hearing. 

 

 

  /s/ Vanessa Moritz      

  Village Clerk  

  Village of Forest Park 

 
 



 
1161552.1 

RESOLUTION NO. R-__________-23 
 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 TO THE CONTRACT WITH 
CHICAGOLAND PAVING, INC. FOR THE REHABILITATION  

OF THE ACCESS ROAD TO THE NORTH WATER TANK PAVING PROJECT 
 

 WHEREAS, the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois ("Village"), previously 

awarded the contract (“Contract”) for the Rehabilitation of the North Water Tank Paving Project 

("Project") to Chicagoland Paving, Inc. (“Contractor") for the original Contract Price of Forty-

Five Thousand Dollars ($45,000.00); and 

 WHEREAS, the Contractor has prepared and submitted, and Christopher B. Burke 

Engineering, Ltd., Village Engineer, on behalf of the Village, has reviewed and recommended 

Change Order No. 1 to the Contract, which reflects work to be added, in addition to the approved 

Contract, in particular additional paving improvements of the access drive to the North Water 

Tank, to be included in the Project, a copy of which Change Order No. 1 is attached hereto and 

made a part hereof as Exhibit A; and 

 WHEREAS, Change Order No. 1 to the Contract increases the Contract Price by an 

additional Nineteen Thousand One Hundred Sixty-Two and 40/100 Dollars ($19,162.40) for a new 

contract price of Sixty-Four Thousand One Hundred Sixty-Two and 40/100 Dollars ($64,162.40); 

and 

 WHEREAS, it is necessary that the Mayor and Council of the Village approve Change 

Order No. 1 to the Contract. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Council of the Village of 

Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1. The statements contained in the preambles to this Resolution are found to 

be true and correct and are hereby incorporated into this Resolution. 



 
1161552.1 

 Section 2. The Council of the Village hereby approves Change Order No. 1 to the 

Contract. 

 Section 3. The Village Administrator be and is hereby authorized to execute Change 

Order No. 1, as attached hereto and made a part hereof as Exhibit A. 

 Section 4. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage in the 

manner provided by law. 

 ADOPTED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 11th 

day of September, 2023.  

 AYES: ___________________________ 
 NAYS: ___________________________ 
 ABSENT: _________________________  
 

APPROVED by me this 11th day of September, 2023. 
 
 
 
   ___________________________________ 

Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor  
 

ATTESTED and filed in my office, 
and published in pamphlet form 
this ______ day of September, 2023. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Vanessa Moritz, Clerk   



 
1161552.1 

EXHIBIT A 
 

CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 TO CONTRACT 
WITH CHICAGOLAND PAVING, INC. FOR THE ACCESS ROAD  

REHABILITATION OF THE NORTH WATER TANK PAVING PROJECT 
  



 
1161552.1 

   
 

Village of Forest Park 
Change Order 

Change Order No. : 1 
  

Date : 09/01/2023 
  

Agreement Date : 09/01/2023 
 

Name of Project: Water Tower Paving Project 
  

Owner: Village of Forest Park 
  

Contractor: Chicagoland Paving 
  

 
CHANGES TO THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS (Describe and/or attach description/justification) 

 
Additional HMA paving at Access Road east of the North Water Tower. 
 
CHANGES TO THE CONTRACT PRICE          
 

Original CONTRACT PRICE = 45,000.00$         

Current CONTRACT PRICE adjusted by previous CHANGE ORDER(s) = 45,000.00$         

The CONTRACT PRICE due to this CHANGE ORDER will be (increased) = 19,162.40$         

The new CONTRACT PRICE including this CHANGE ORDER will be = 64,162.40$         
 

 
CHANGE TO CONTRACT TIME 
 

   
CONTRACT TIME will be (Increased) by calendar days: 0  
   
The Date for final completion of all work shall be: N/A  
   

 
Prepared By CONTRACTOR: Chicagoland Paving (date)  

    
Reviewed By ENGINEER: James F. Amelio, P.E. (date)  

    
Accepted By OWNER: Village of Forest Park (date)  



 
1161552.1 

 



RESOLUTION NO. R-________-23 

A RESOLUTION TO ENTER INTO A DIALOGUE TO EXPLORE ESTABLISHING A 
COOPERATION AGREEMENT BETWEEN VLORA MUNICIPALITY, ALBANIA AND 

THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, ILLINOIS 

WHEREAS, Forest Park has been a thriving and diverse community noted for its rich 

cultural heritage; and 

WHEREAS, Forest Park has been home to a proud community of families that 

immigrated from Albania and from other parts of the former Yugoslavia, or are descended from 

that region in Central Europe; and  

WHEREAS, in June 2023, a delegation from Prefecture of Vlora that included 

government and community leaders, and cultural icons including the Veteranët e Futbollit 

Flamurtari sports club visited Cook County, Illinois and  

WHEREAS, the delegation from the Prefecture of Vlora (“Prefecture” is equivalent to a 

county-level unit of government) visited our community with the purpose of sharing best 

practices and exploring opportunities for cooperation between Vlora Municipality and Forest 

Park, Illinois; and  

WHERAS, members of the Veteranët e Futbollit Flamurtari sports club participated in an 

exhibition soccer match in Forest Park with a sincere belief that the cooperation in the field of  

sports, could serve as a good example and a start to sharing best practices, and exploring  

opportunities for cooperation between Vlora Municipality and Forest Park ; and 

WHEREAS, the delegates from Prefecture of Vlora visited Forest Park Village Hall at 

the mayor’s invitation and engaged in a pleasant discussion about our two communities 

including cultural and historical events, the eventual exchange of small tokens, and  



WHEREAS, during the visit to Forest Park Village Hall, and during extended 

pleasantries within the downtown business district, Mayor Hoskins and the delegation expressed 

a belief that both Forest Park and Vlora share a common vision for progress and development; 

and 

WHEREAS, the delegates from Prefecture of Vlora were impressed by the various 

initiatives and projects that the Village of Forest Park has undertaken which have made a 

positive impact on the lives of Forest Park residents; and 

 WHEREAS, the Honorable Flamur Mamaj, Prefect of Vlora District, has corresponded  
 
with Forest Park and has shared his belief that by working together, the Vlora Municipality and  
 
the Village of Forest Park, should consider joining forces for the purpose of creating a  
 
meaningful and lasting partnership that includes sharing resources and expertise that will benefit  
 
both communities significantly through collaboration in areas such as developing  
 
environmental/sustainability practices as well as through educational activity, and cultural 
 
exchanges. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, 

Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1. The Village of Forest Park hereby wishes to establish a dialogue to 

explore entering into a Sister-City relationship between the Vlora Municipality, Albania 

and the Village of Forest Park, Illinois. 

Section 2. That the Mayor and Members of the Village Council extend pleasant 

greetings and invitations to the elected officials, community leaders and all citizens of the 

Vlora Municipality. 



Section 3. That efforts will be made to nurture an enduring relationship between the 

citizens of the Village of Forest Park, Illinois and Vlora Municipality, Albania. 

Section 4. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage in the 

manner provided by law. 

 PASSED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 11th day  
 
of September, 2023. 

 
AYES:  ___________________ 
 
NAYS:  ___________________ 
 
ABSENT:  _________________ 
 
 APPROVED by me this 11th day of September, 2023. 
 
  
        
 ___________________________________ 
       Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTESTED and filed in my office, 
and published in pamphlet form 
this _______ day of September, 2023. 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 
 



1161687-1 

RESOLUTION NO. R-________-23 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE EXECUTION  
OF A RELEASE AND SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT  

Re:  Gomez v. Village of Forest Park, Case No. 22-CV-00607 
 

 WHEREAS, regarding United States District Court for the Northern District of Illinois, 

Case No. 22-CV-00607, Felipe Gomez v. Village of Forest Park, et al.  (“Case”), the Village of 

Forest Park (the “Village”) is desirous of entering into a Release and Settlement Agreement with 

respect to the Case. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, 

Cook County, Illinois as follows: 

 Section 1. The Release and Settlement Agreement, a copy of which is attached hereto 

as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof, is hereby approved. 

Section 2. The officials, officers and employees of the Village are hereby authorized 

to take such further actions and execute such documents as are necessary to carry out the purpose 

and intent of this Resolution and the Release and Settlement Agreement. 

 Section 3.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from its passage and approval. 

 ADOPTED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 11th 

day of September, 2023. 

 
AYES:  ___________________ 
 
NAYS:  ___________________ 
 
ABSENT:  _________________ 
 
 
        
  ___________________________________ 
       Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 
 
ATTESTED: 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 



1026456-1

EXHIBIT “A” 

Gomez v. Village of Forest Park 
Case No. 22-CV-00607 

RELEASE AND SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 




